# NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL NORTH NORTHUMBERLAND LOCAL AREA COUNCIL

At the meeting of the **North Northumberland Local Area Council** held at Main Hall - St James's URC, Pottergate, Alnwick, NE66 1JW on Thursday, 23 June 2022 at Time Not Specified.

#### **PRESENT**

G Castle (Chair) (in the Chair)

#### **MEMBERS**

T Thorne T Clark
G Hill C Seymour
J Watson C Hardy
I Hunter M Swinbank

#### **OFFICERS**

J Blenkinsopp Solicitor

J Hudson Planning Officer

R Little Assistant Democratic Services Officer

J Sharp Senior Planning Officer

Around 15 members of the press and public were present.

#### 20 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillor S. Bridgett, Councillor M. Mather, Councillor W. Pattison and Councillor G. Renner-Thompson.

#### 21 MINUTES

**RESOLVED** that the minutes of the meeting of the North Northumberland Local Area Council held on Thursday, 19 May 2022, as circulated, be confirmed as a true record and be signed by the Chair.

#### 22 DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor Hunter and Councillor Thorne advised the committee that they had personal, but non prejudicial interests in items 5 and 6 of the agenda, 21/03792/FUL and 21/01112/FUL

Councillor Hardy (Vice Chair - Planning), in the Chair.

#### 23 **DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS**

The report requested the Committee to decide the planning applications attached to the report using the powers delegated to it. Members were reminded of the principles which should govern their consideration of the applications, the procedure for handling representations, the requirement of conditions and the need for justifiable reasons for the granting of permission or refusal of planning applications.

**RESOLVED** that this was noted.

#### 24 **21/03792/FUL**

Retrospective: Construction of outdoor timber serving building and temporary sitting of 4no. all weather restaurant sheds.
Land East of The Craster Arms, The Haven, Beadnell, Chathill, Northumberland, NE67 5AY

- J. Sharp Senior Planning Officer, introduced the application with a PowerPoint Presentation, there had been no updates since the agenda was published.
- G. Martindale spoke on behalf of the Beadnell Parish Council and gave the committee the following information:
  - The applicant was a Beadnell Parish Councillor but had taken no part in Parish Council deliberations.
  - The Parish Council agreed unanimously to support the application.

- No objections had been submitted from the 29 neighbour notifications.
- The popularity of Beadnell as a retirement and holiday village had grown.
- The enhancement of the beer garden provided additional restaurant seating in a secure atmosphere in addition to permanent employment for additional staff.
- The serving building and restaurant sheds allowed the garden to be used in the winter.

## C. Scott-Roy spoke in support of the application and gave the following information:

- There had been overwhelming public support, including the local Vicar.
- The Craster Arms was a community pub that had been operating for over 100 years.
- The owner, M. Dawson had provided hot meals for 93 vulnerable and shielding residents for free during the Covid-19 pandemic.
- The pods were intended for temporary use whilst the shed was intended for permanent use.
- Local artists had designed the pods.

Following questions from members to the planning officer, the following information was provided:

- The Built Heritage Officer had observed that there would be less than substantial harm.
- The dining cabin, alone, would be deemed acceptable in a planning application.
- The applicant was seeking temporary planning permission for the pods for three years.

Councillor Castle proposed to grant planning permission, against officer recommendation, (permission for the dining cabin was permanent and permission for the pods to remain for three years temporarily) with delegated authority provided to the Director of Planning in consultation with the Chair of the Planning Committee for conditions to be applied to the permission. This was seconded by Councillor Thorne, stating that the public benefit outweighed the negative impact.

A vote was taken as follows: FOR; 5, AGAINST; 3, ABSTAIN;1

**RESOLVED** that the application be **GRANTED** with delegated authority to the Director of Planning in consultation with the Chair of the Planning Committee to agree conditions to be attached to the permission.

### 25 **21/01112/FUL**

Replacement of existing store and smoking shelter within the rear car park with a shipping container to provide outdoor food and drink service ancillary to Beadnell Towers Hotel.

Beadnell Towers Hotel, The Wynding, Beadnell, Chathill, Northumberland, NE67 5AY

- J. Sharp Senior Planning Officer, introduced the application with the aid of a PowerPoint presentation and explained that the application was recommended for refusal for Impact on Designated Heritage Assets and Impact on AONB.
- G. Martindale spoke on behalf of the Beadnell Parish Council and gave the committee the following information:
  - The Beadnell Parish Council had suggested a condition to restrict the opening times from 12:00 to 20:00, daily, to be applied to any granting of planning permission.
  - The Beadnell Parish Council had requested that the parking spaces were to be reinstated as soon as practical as parking remained a contentious issue in that part of the village.
- D. Puttick spoke on behalf of the applicant, in support to the application, and gave the following information:
  - The applicant had been continuing to suffer a financial impact since the start of the Covid-19 pandemic.
  - The Beadnell Towers Hotel was significant to the local community and the business had relied on government loans.
  - Customers had returned in smaller numbers and the owners of the hotel have had to adapt to change.
  - The applicant would welcome planning permission even if only on a temporary basis.

Following questions from members to the planning officers, the following information was provided:

- If members felt that there were sufficient reasons to approve the application, then the amenity of residents could be protected by the imposition of a condition to restrict the opening hours of the outdoor food container.
- There would be the same number of parking spaces as previously, the container would replace the smoking shelter.
- There was significantly less outdoor seating than there was in 2021.
- There was open space on the other side of the Beadnell Towers Hotel, but it was not associated with the building.

Councillor Watson proposed to accept officers' recommendation to refuse the application as outlined in the report, which was seconded by Councillor Castle.

Councillor Hill agreed with the recommendation stating that it tops on the balance of harm and the applicant should look for a better application.

Councillor Thorne explained that he could see the benefit, the industry needed all the help it could get and that he would be supporting the hotel.

A vote was taken as follows: FOR; 7, AGAINST; 1, ABSTAIN;1

**RESOLVED** that the application be **REFUSED** in line with the officers recommendation, for Impact on Designated Heritage Assets and Impact on AONB

#### 26 **21/04960/FUL**

Resubmission: Rebuilding of Grahamslaw Cottage following significant fire damage. Detached garage.

Grahamslaw Cottage, Priests Moor, Christon Bank, Northumberland

- J. Hudson Senior Planning Officer, introduced the application with the aid of a PowerPoint Presentation.
- G. Grahamslaw, applicant and owner of the site, spoke in support of the application and gave the following information:
  - In May 2020, a fire destroyed the cottage that was on the site.
  - The cottage had been in the family since its original construction.
  - The application would sit on the current site, with no changes to the boundary.
  - The applicant believed that the application was supported by local planning policy and had the support of the Parish Council.
  - The applicant was happy to enter into a section 106 agreement for a Coastal Mitigation payment.

Following questions from members to the planning officers, the following information was provided:

- The planning officer had come to the view that the site was previously abandoned before the fire and not been used for 20 years.
- There was no information available on whether Council Tax had been paid for the property, the applicant did not supply any evidence that Council Tax had been paid.
- The cottage was over 100 years old, but nobody had lived in the dwelling prior to the fire, for 20 years.
- The only image of the cottage prior to the fire damage was from a Google Maps – Street View from 2008, which showed the building to be overgrown by trees and bushes.
- The cottage was not on a farm and was an isolated building.

Councillor Watson proposed to move the recommendation to refuse the application as outlined in the report, which was seconded by Councillor Hill, stating that whilst they had sympathy with the applicant, the policy was very clear.

Councillor Swinbank stated that he believed it was abandoned due to the levels of trees and bushes that had grown over, if the design was of exceptional design and sustainable, the recommendation may have been different.

A vote was taken, and it was unanimously:

**RESOLVED** that the application be **REFUSED** in line with the officers recommendation in the report.

#### 27 APPEALS UPDATE

**RESOLVED** that this was noted.

28	SECTION 106	
	<b>RESOLVED</b> that this was noted.	
29	DATE OF NEXT MEETING	
	<b>RESOLVED</b> that this was noted.	
		CHAIR
	1	DATE